ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON O L AND GAS
March 15, 2007
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Vic Kohring, Chair
Representative Kurt A son, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Jay Ranras

Represent ati ve Ral ph Saruel s
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Representative Scott Kawasaki

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins
Representative David Guttenberg

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 177
"An Act relating to the Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act;
establishing the Alaska @Gasline |nducenent Act mat chi ng
contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline |nducenent
Act coordinator; making conform ng anmendnents; and providing for
an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 177

SHORT TI TLE: NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQIECT
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 05/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 07 (H) &G, RES, FIN

03/ 06/ 07 (H 08G AT 3:00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 06/ 07 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 08/ 07 (H) 08G AT 3:00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 08/ 07 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -1- March 15, 2007



03/ 13/ 07 (H) O8G AT 3:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
03/ 13/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 13/ 07 (H) M NUTE( 0%G)

03/ 15/ 07 (H) O8G AT 3:00 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

PATRI CK GALVI N, Commi ssi oner

Departnent of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: On behalf of the governor, presented HB
177.

KEVI N BANKS, Acting Director

Division of Gl and Gas

Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented portions of HB 177.

MARCI A DAVI S, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented portions of HB 177.

LARRY OSTROVSKY, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral

St at ewi de Section Supervi sor

Ol, Gas & Mning Section

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned possible |egal issues associated
wth HB 177.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR VIC KOHRI NG cal l ed the House Special Conmmittee on Ol and
Gas neeting to order at 3:04:58 PM Present at the call to
order were Representatives Kohring, Doogan, Kawasaki, d son,
Dahl strom Sanuels, and Ranras. Representative Quttenberg and
Senator Charlie Huggins were also in attendance.

HB 177- NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQJECT

3:05:17 PM
CHAI R KOHRI NG announced that the only order of business would be

HOUSE BILL NO. 177, "An Act relating to the Alaska Gasline
| nducenent Act; establishing the Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 2- March 15, 2007



mat ching contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline
| nducenent Act coordinator; naking conform ng anmendnents; and
providing for an effective date."

3:06: 50 PM

PATRI CK GALVI N, Commi ssioner, Departnent of Revenue (DOR), gave
an overview of today's planned testinony, noting that sone of
the planned testinony was in response to questions raised by
comittee nenbers.

3:08:36 PM

KEVIN BANKS, Acting Director, Division of QI and Gas,
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), referred to a Power Poi nt
presentation and explained the concept of "in-state use" as
contained in the Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act (AdA). He
stated that AG A requires that there be five off-take points,
di stance sensitive rates, and expansion provisions, and referred

to slide 4 titled "In-State Use." The act requires an applicant
to describe where the off-take points will be and to explain how
di stance sensitive rates will be established in the state. He

noted that off-take points could also be in-take points at sone
point, which he thinks should be addressed in gas pipeline

proposals the state receives. He opined that the inportant
point is not where off-take points wll be |ocated, but how
tariffs will be calculated and how expansion of off-take points

wi |l be devel oped in the future.
3:13:19 PM

MR. BANKS referred to slide 5 titled "Hypothetical: Gas Of-take
in Fairbanks,” and stated that the assunption is that the tariff
fromthe North Slope to the Canadian border is about 72 cents.
He went on to explain that mleage-based rates would suggest a
tariff of 46 to 47 cents to Fairbanks. He referred to slide
five titled "Fairbanks Gas Prices if <capacity acquired at
initial or subsequent Open Season,” to explain what a Fairbanks
utility may pay for gas. Assuming a $5.50 Al berta, Canada gas
price, one would subtract a tariff of $2.14 to nove gas all the
way to Al berta. The netback value would then be $3. 36. A
producer that w shed to ship gas to Fairbanks through the gas
line would have to pay the gas treatnent plant (GIP) fee of 49
cents and Fairbanks's tariff of 47 cents, which would bring the
price of gas at Fairbanks up to $4.32. He said that w thout
di stance sensitive rates and a Fairbanks off-take destination,
the price of gas delivered to Fairbanks would be $4.62. He said

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 3- March 15, 2007



this is because the border tariff would be 72 cents all the way
to the border.

3:16: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAVMRAS asked whether the Alberta gas price neans
the Henry Hub price and referenced the need to use consistent
term nology for clarity.

MR. BANKS explained that the Alberta gas price is the Al berta
Energy Conpany Ltd., (AEC), hub price and that there is a
vigorously traded liquid nmarket in Al berta. He opined that a
North Slope producer selling gas to a Fairbanks wutility would
want to achieve the sanme netback the producer would receive by
selling to the AEC hub. Under the exanple presented, if a
producer is selling to the AEC hub for $5,50, the netback would

be $3. 36. The alternative would be to ship the gas to
Fai rbanks. However, to achieve the same netback price of $3. 36,
the producer will have to charge $4.32 for gas in Fairbanks to

cover the costs of shipping and processing using the distance
based tariff.

REPRESENTATIVE RAMRAS told the comittee that currently
Fai rbanks Natural Gas charges $16.80 per thousand cubic feet
(Mcf), while the Henry Hub price is close to $ 7.00. He
observed that it appears under these calculations that the
energy cost for gas in Fairbanks will be cut by alnost two-
t hi rds. He asked whether AG A requires that producers be price
sensitive as well as distance sensitive. He al so asked about
any possibility that the pricing may not neet constitutional
requi renents of maxi num use of natural resources.

MR. BANKS said that the aforenentioned hypothetical assunes the
producer that wll sell gas the Fairbanks utility at the sane
price they would have received had they sold the gas in Al berta.
He noted that AG A does not address issues regarding the state's
deci sions regarding royalty in kind (R K).

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked whether, even if tariffs could be
reduced for local use, the price of gas will remain the market
pri ce.

MR. BANKS replied that the state has to achieve sonme parity in
the price when it switches from for royalty in value (RIV) to
RIK. He noted that commercial producers could nake arrangenents
to sell gas at prices higher or lower than those contained in
the state's presentation.

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -4- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked if the rate charged to the consuner
would be set by the utility and the Regulatory Conm ssion of
Al aska (RCA).

COM SSI ONER GALVI N explained that other nechanisnms in state
law, primarily the RCA, work to protect the consumer in the
determ nation of utility services costs.

3:24:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if distance sensitive rates are a
common feature in gas pipelines.

MR. BANKS answered yes. He referenced slide 7, titled
"Fairbanks Gas Prices if no capacity available through
expansion," to explain what happens when there is narrow
capacity.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS set forth the possibility that it may
difficult for comrunities to switch from primarily using fuel
for energy to primarily using gas because of the time it takes
to replace boilers. Wth that in mnd, he set forth his desire
that a mechani sm be proposed to assist conmunities in swtching
to gas use.

MR. CGALVIN opined that during the initial open season, it is

unlikely that many comunities wll be ready to use gas.
However, he predicted that the nmarket will expand as the gas
pi pel i ne expands. He noted that communities will benefit from

the expandability of the gas pipeline, not necessarily just from
the five in-state off-take points, which nay not be in the line
when it is initially built. However, the pipeline builder mnust
coonmit to make arrangenents for future off-take points when
needed, he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS noted that Fairbanks is perhaps only 5
percent developed for gas, with the potential for much nore
devel opnment in its ability to use gas.

3:30:13 PM

MR. BANKS opined that off-take points are part of the issue, but
the main point is the desire for a distance-based tariff to the
of f-take point, wherever it my be. Further, if there is
failure to take advantage of the open season and there is no
expansion ability built into the pipeline, there is a risk of

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 5- March 15, 2007



having to pay an AEC price in Fairbanks because of "stranded
capacity beyond Fairbanks to the narketplace", which would
result in one having to pay the full tariff price.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked about the nechanismin AGA for
determ ning the correct size and structure of take-off points.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N agreed that there are significant issues to
be considered to prepare the state of in-state gas use. He said
he does not expect the initial proposals to detail the volunme of
of f-take points. \Wen the open season occurs, the l|ocation and

volune of gas in-take and off-take points wll be established
for the initial design of the project. He opined that as a
practical matter, not all areas of the state will be ready to
receive gas at the tine of the open season. However the

expansion opportunities provide the ultimate solution by
allowing communities to receive gas when ready, he indicated.
He noted that there needs to be discussion regarding readiness
for open season, but stated that "we need to get AG A going" for
t hat di scussion to occur.

3:34: 23 PM

CHAI R KOHRI NG expressed his desire that the gas pipeline include
appropriate off-take points for various areas of the state.

VR. BANKS stated AGQA wll establish wthin the tariff
cal cul ations that various pipeline segnents will have different
rates for delivery of gas to off-take points. He opined that
there woul d be sufficient nunbers of in-take and off-take points
along the |line to allow for expansion. He reiterated that
recipients of gas would know they would be paying a distance
sensitive tariff.

3:36: 08 PM

COM SSIONER GALVIN said that AG A contains two significant
evaluation criteria: value to the state and 1likelihood of
success. Consi deration of these criteria involves use of data
and nodeling to determne likely benefits to the state and the
i kelihood of success. Vari ous sub-factors that are part of
this evaluation include timng, cost overrun mtigation,
favorable tariffs, initial capacity and expansion, and state

match after open season. He noted that there are many factors
to consider in the area of tariffs as producer proposals nmay
vary. He set forth the possibility that a producer could
propose sonmething with a greater debt to equity ratio than 70 to

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 6- March 15, 2007



30 percent to provide a nore favorable tariff. Producers nmay
ask for a commtnent for greater return on the equity that could
al so provide greater value to the state through a lower tariff.

He went on to say that 1initial gas flow and expansion
opportunities would be eval uated. The state will provide "one
to one, 50 percent of the cost to get to open season," but
beyond that producers wll make their proposals for cost
sharing, which the state will evaluate in determning the val ue
of the proposal. A review of the likelihood of success includes
many factors such as the feasibility of the work plan and
budget, financial strength, technical expertise and track

record, he said.
3:40: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked whether the take-off points are
considered in the initial evaluation of proposals.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N explained that there are certain itens a
proposal nust contain in order to be considered. For exanple, a
producer nust have at |east 70 percent debt, or their proposa
will not be considered. He said that the five off-take points
are not listed in the initial evaluation criteria because a
proposal for nore than five does not convey a quantifiable
increased value in terns of conparing one application to

anot her . The "nust haves" are mninuns qualifications for a
proposal to be considered. Proposal s that neet the m ninmm
qualifications are eval uated against each other. He noted that
additions beyond the "nust have" list nove into and are

considered in the evaluation criteri a.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN clarified that if an application does not
contain even one of the "nust have" points, it is not
consi der ed. If the application has all 16 points, it is
eval uated in accordance with the 7 criteria in the |egislation.

COM SSIONER GALVIN said he agreed with the aforenentioned
coment .

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked how about the process of weighing
the different application conponents.

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N expl ained that rmuch consideration had gone
into the evaluation criteria, including consideration of whether
to assign points to various criteria and how objective or
subj ective evaluation should be. He opined that there are risks
to either option. He said one concern was that requiring

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -7- March 15, 2007



extrene specificity could result in a proposal neeting the
criteria, but not actually providing the best benefit to the
st ate. Additionally, one of the risks associated with keeping
the tineline going is that there may be a judicial challenge to
the license selection. He set forth that it nmay be nore likely
a court will enjoin the project if the court feels it could
substitute its judgnent for that of the agency. He expl ai ned
that discretionary agency decisions wusually receive nore
deference when a court reviews them He opined that the risk of
the project being delayed by litigation is less if the decision
makers have nore discretion and subjectivity in the agency
eval uation process. He stated that there needs to be clarity in
what the state is looking for in a gas pipeline project, and he
believes that the criteria provided in AGA provides that
clarity. Utimately, the decision makers wll consider which
project is in the best interest of the state. He opined that
state agencies, such as DNR, have substantial experience wth
wei ghing various factors to determne the state's best interest
in conplex resource decisions. He said the decision would be
explained to the public and ultimately be subject to |egislative
revi ew.

3:48: 54 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN explained in response to a question that
inclusion of a weighted point system for the evaluation of the
seven initial criteria could result in an application scoring
the highest, yet not really being the best proposal for the
st at e.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked whether weighted criteria would be
preferable to determne the state's best interest.

COWMM SSI ON GALVI N responded that a weighted criteria nmethod for
evaluation could be preferable if such a method was sure to
result in the best project for the state. However, because of
the conplexity of the project and the probable variety of
proposals that wll be received, the decision nakers need
flexibility to carefully weigh and consider the risks of each
proj ect, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS noted that one criteria is to make the
applications public. He opined that tariff-holders were likely
to gain significant revenues. He said he was interested in
seeing the alignnment of different groups wth the pipeline
proj ect . He further stated a desire to explore the possibility
of a scoring nechanismthat would consider inclusion of in-state

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 8- March 15, 2007



agencies or organizations' investnent in the equity portion of
t he pipeline. He noted sone |arger organizations, such as the
Al aska Per manent Fund Corporation, the Alaska Retirenent
Managenment Board (ARMB), or Native corporations could possibly
participate in ownership of the pipeline, and noted that great
financial benefits that could result from such participation

3:56: 28 PM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN explained that item six of the initial
criteria requires an applicant to denonstrate its famliarity
with the tasks that are required to build a pipeline, such as
obt ai nment of necessary pernmts from Canada. Additionally, the
applicant wll have to describe its wrk plan in the
appl i cation.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked about possible delays that could be
caused by legal challenges and expressed some concern regarding
t he application eval uati on process.

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that there is a risk to assignhing a
point value to each conponent because of the difficulties in
coming up with a nunmber that would differentiate one proposal
from another. He agreed that consideration of many issues woul d
be part of the evaluation process. He set forth that one reason
for providing a legislative opportunity to disapprove is to

provide further analysis of the conm ssioners' decision. He
went on to opine that there may not be an easy way to build a
f ool proof evaluation process into AGA He agreed with an

observation that the Comm ssioners of DNR and DOR would in
essence nmeke a best interest finding based on the evaluation
criteria and conpari son of proposals to each other.

4:01:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS raised the issue of business ethics and
how such a subjective termis judged. He al so noted that there
may be considerable | egislative debate on this issue.

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN noted there were possible difficulties with
the definition of the term "best interest finding," but
explained that such an approach would allow the state to
consider factors that are not in the application, such as the
possibility that an applicant has a negative business history in
anot her country.

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -9- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked whether the adm nistration has begun
dialog with First Nations' representatives.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N replied that sone groups have spoken to the
state about concerns regarding the pipeline route, but noted
there is not a proposed route as yet. There are concerns about
the pipeline route, tanker placenent and other issues and those
concerns would be particular to the project, which is why there
is sone flexibility in the evaluation process, he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred the need for a public record
of the eval uation process.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN stated that the bill contains the criteria
to be considered by the commi ssioners and opined that the best
way to wthstand judicial review is to have a substantive
finding that weighs the issues identified by the |egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN expressed concern over going forward with
undi fferentiated criteria and questioned whether there is a need
for nore participation at the decision making level to |essen
subjectivity in the making of the final decision.

MR. GALVIN responded that part of the reason for the suggested
procedure was timng and predicted that a board process would
take |l onger to cone to a deci sion.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM suggested that perhaps one nore
comi ssi oner be added to the decision-naking team

COM SSI ONER GALVIN stated he understands the nature of trust
required to approve the proposed decision-nmaking process. He
reiterated that timng is of concern as DOR would like a
decision made in a tinely fashion.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noted that the decision may be nade by a
di fferent governor and different conm ssioners depending on the
timng of proposals received under AGQ A

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N referenced other decision-making guidelines
in Alaska law and noted that in other areas, the legislature
gives the guidelines, but the executive branch nmakes the
deci si on. He suggested it would be nore unusual to tie the
deci si on- meki ng process down to nore quantifiable point process.
He suggested that the nbdel presented here exists in Al aska |aw
and has the added safety valve of I|egislative approval of the
deci si on.

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 10- March 15, 2007



4:16: 01 PM

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N stated that increased predictability for the
producers is a key conmponent of AGQ A

MR. BANKS relayed that AGA is designed to avoid royalty paynent
adjustnments by creating a clear, easily used royalty formula.
He referenced prior lengthy litigation regarding royalty oil and
noted that DOR seeks to establish fiscal certainty and avoid
[itigation. He opined that the state can offer real value to
the producers by providing clear royalty value definitions in
the leases. He went on to say that several aspects of the past
DL-1 |eases have been adjudicated. In 1980 there was a
settlenent terned the "field cost settlenent” which determ ned
what costs the state would allow for deductions based on GIP
costs. At the tinme, the state anticipated gas production and
wanted to be prepared, he explained. In the early 1990s, there
was a settlenent between the state and producers on the question
of royalty oil wvaluation. In each of those settlenents,
formulas were established to clarify |ease provisions he
descri bed as "nost confusing"” to the |essees. He explained that
the DL-1 |ease defines five different values, two of which are
not relevant as they concern posted prices. The other three
provi sions cover: what the |essee actually receives for oil or
gas sold; what others receive in the sanme field, and what the
mar ket value for oil or gas is as deternmi ned by market factors.
The lease requires the |lessee to pay the highest of these three
factors, he expl ai ned.

4:20: 34 PM

MR. BANKS pointed out that a |lessee will know what it receives
for oil or gas sold, but wll not necessarily know what other
| essees receive. In the third option, there may be a question
about what nmechanism the state will wuse to determ ne nmarket
val ue. Wth the prior nechanism the |essee does not know at
the tinme of paynment whether it has paid the correct royalty
val ue, he opined. Because of this uncertainty, AG A proposes to
calculate royalty value based on market value where the gas is

sol d. He indicated one possible indices the state may use to
determ ne market value for gas is the AEC hub price because that
price represents a wdely traded, publicized gas price. He
noted that the indices used to determne gas price wll likely

be based on the format for the final project. He noted that the
DL-1 leases also allow the state to take its royalty share in
value on a three nonth notice to the |essee. He said that the

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -11- March 15, 2007



three nonth provision allows the state to plan ahead and know
how much oil to take in-kind for custoner's future needs.

4:24:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS noted that the comodity market for oil is
broad and queried whether there is the sanme kind of elasticity
in the spot market for gas. He cautioned that perhaps the
market for gas is less flexible than that for oil

MR. BANKS suggested that the issue is whether the state will be
in the position to nodify its request as to the amount of gas
volune it wishes to take in kind so as to participate in the
spot market. He indicated that in the Lower 48, there is a fair
anount of daily trading activity to neet demands based on
factors such as weat her. He said that a long term gas contract
may be for under a year. However, Alaska wll Ilikely be
concerned with providing gas to its local comunities, and would
nore than likely participate in longer term contracts wth
buyers. He suggested that the inpact of the decision of whether
to take royalty-in-kind will occur at the tine the commtnent is
made. For exanple, the pipeline may be sized to nove a certain
guantity of gas to the Al berta hub or to Val dez. If the state
then decides later to enter a contract with an in-state utility
to take sone of that royalty gas, it could |eave the |lessee with

stranded capacity. He explained that AG A proposes to give
reasonable terns when the state switches from RV to RIK.  This
will be acconmplished by giving |essees sufficient notice to

adjust their own capacity and to nmke commercial arrangenents
for the | essee to absorb sone of the costs they may incur due to
stranded capacity.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS suggested it is not practical to have a
90 days' provision due to the risk of varying capacity.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N said that because of the gas contracts wth
| essees, they are at a comercial risk position because the
state has the right to take RIK, but does not have to use it.
He characterized this provision as "real value" because the
| essees would be concerned about having stranded capacity or
having to displace their gas. He opined that this is a val uable
i ncentive.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS offered his belief that this provision
wi Il discourage producers from participating in open season
since there is the risk of the state will change its position to
the detrinment of the | essees.

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -12- March 15, 2007



COMM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that this is a significant issue for
| essees, which is why it is appropriate to include in the bill.
He said that inclusion of the provision would help overcone
concern and to provide a level of certainty. |If a producer does
not participate in the initial open season, it is l|likely that
the producer wll want to discuss possible changes with the
state. He explained it will be the prerogative of the state
whet her to change it or not.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG comrented that economc factors built
in to the contract nust be conpensat ed.

COMM SSIONER GALVIN replied that the state currently has the
right to switch between RIK and RV, and has had this provision
in its leases for 30 years. However, in the "gas world" these
provisions can be problematic because |essees have to take
positions in regard to contracts and sales contracts that could
be adversely affected if the state switches it position on its
royalty take. Therefore, there are reasons for |essees wll
want restrictions on the state's ability to switch how it takes
its royalty share, and that is a proper bargaining point, he
i ndi cat ed.

MR. BANKS answered a question by explaining that although Cook
Inl et gas contracts contain R K provisions, the state has never
exercised its right to take the gas i n-kind.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said that the next issue is the production
tax aspect of AQJA He noted there is concern over the
constitutionality of sonme provisions which Iimt the applicable
tax rate. He offered his belief that the drafters of AGA
structured this as strongly as possible for constitutional
reasons. He explained that it is being offered as an incentive
for the gas community and opined that its value is based on its

i keli hood of w thstanding constitutional challenge. He noted
that this provision is a discrete part of AGA, therefore it
would not cause harm to the bill if this provision is not
al | owed.

MARCI A DAVI S, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue, opined
that AG A's production tax exenption provision is allowable
under the state constitution. She explained that it provides a
production tax exenption that is nmeasured as the value of the
gas production tax obligation mnus the gas production tax
obligation during the open season. She explained that the open
season is the benchmark year in which to set the econom c val ue

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 13- March 15, 2007



of the expectation for the producer. It is only available for
gas shipped in the same capacity as acquired in the binding open
season because DOR views this as a contract. She expl ai ned that
in exchange for this econom c benefit, the producer nust commt

its gas in the first binding open season. Secondly, DOR is
requesting that producers agree not to protest the rolled in
tariff provisions that wll be required of the successful
| i censee. This benefit is limted to 10 years of gas flow
because 10 years is a reasonable time franme for return of
capital investnent, she opined. It is also the sane tinme period

as in the Alaska Industrial Incentive Act, and so has a history
as a reasonable tine period.

4:42: 24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked about discussions establishing a
tax rate and whether there was consideration that the tax rate

be retroacti ve.

COW SSIONER  GALVIN enphasized DOR desires to provide a

structure W th t he st rongest | egal argunent s for
constitutionality. He explained this is being provided as a
cont ract ual rel ati onship, not as a Jlimtation on the
| egislature's ability to <change the tax rate. Since a

contractual arrangenent requires an exchange, he opined that it
made sense to have the tax rate that applies at the time the
open season commtnent is nmade be the tax rate that applies for
t hose 10 years.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked how the oil conpanies would assign
value to this provision

M5. DAVI S explained that oil conpanies have significant business
experience in many places besides Alaska, and are wused to
wei ghing various levels of risk factors and |egal issues. She
opined this is not a very conplex |legal issue, but one that is
based on a determnation of the intent of the framers of the

Al aska Constitution. This determination will ultimtely be for
the Al aska Suprene court she said, but opined that guiding |egal
principles favor the constitutionality of this provision. She

expl ained that oil conpanies are conpetent at considering many
factors when deciding whether to enter a contract with the
st at e.

COMM SSI ONER GALVI N predicted oil conpanies would independently
consider and value this provision's worth to them

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -14- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN expressed concern that this provision is
desi gned to be a mai n i ncentive, yet S possi bly
unconstitutional. He asked if there has been discussion on
ot her, possibly |ess problenmatic, incentive provisions.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that oil conmpanies want to lock in
the fiscal ternms for some period of tinme. He explained that DOR
has structured the provision as strongly as possible to
wi thstand a legal challenge and to provide the best nechanism
absent a constitutional anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked about the additional risk to oil
conpani es of not knowing the future tax rate.

COM SSIONER GALVIN explained that this issue has been
consi der ed. He opined that the state cannot control the
conpani es' perception of the risks of investing in Al aska. He
went on to say that each conpany evaluates the risk differently.
He noted he does not consider it "too late" if the risks are not
fully known at the tinme the proposals are due because the risk

is not the "driving factor” at that particular nonent. He set
forth that the provision is intended to result in the gas
commi t ment . The risk DOR is addressing is the tax rate at the

time of open season and the tax rate at the time the gas begins
to flow, he said

4:55: 02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS posed the possibility that there are

greater rewards for acceptance of greater risk and whether DOR
considered this issue in this way.

M5. DAVIS explained that oil conpanies wll |ook for alignnent
and opined that the conpanies have confidence that the
legislature will be not increase taxes at the tine of open
season.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked about the possibility that oi
conpanies will have the |l everage at the tinme of open season.

M5. DAVIS replied that the state cannot change the fact that
| everage exists when the state wants a certain behavior and the
conpanies are in the position to provide it. She said the state
cannot effect when the conpanies act, but said that other
provi sions of AG A address elenents of certainty in the state's
favor. She explained that AG A resolves conmercial issues
outside of the state's control, such as pricing and design

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -15- March 15, 2007



capacity, in such a way as to make it problematic for a producer
to attenpt to |l everage the state at a | ate stage.

LARRY OSTROVSKY, Chief Assistant Attorney General, Statew de
Section Supervisor, GOIl, Gas & Mning Section, Departnment of Law
(DOL) infornmed the commttee that the question of whether the
state can offer fiscal stability is a matter of opinion. He
said the DOL's position is that a fiscal stability provision has
a better chance of surviving a legal challenge if it is narrowy

focused, limted in time, and consistent with past practices.
He said he believes that providing production tax stability in
AG A will survive constitutional challenge under the Al aska

State Constitution, Article 9, Section 1 which provides:

The power of taxation shall never be surrendered.
This power shall not be suspended or contracted away,
except as provided in this article.

He explained that the |anguage of many state constitutions, and
as originally proposed to the Alaska Constitutional Convention
by the Public Advisory Service, ends at the comm. There was
sonme debate on this point during the Alaska Constitutional
Convention because the Public Advisory Service infornmed the
convention that states had on occasion suspended or contracted
away their taxing powers. He opined that there would be no
guestion that there would be an absolute prohibition on the
| egislature's authority to provide tax certainty if Article 9,
section 1 ended after the word "away." However, the Al aska
Constitutional Convention delegates rejected that approach,
| eaving the neaning of the phrase "except as provided in this
article" to be determ ned. He opined that "just about everyone"
who has considered this issue agrees that there is only one
section in Article 9 of the Al aska Constitution that 1is
applicable here and that is section 4 which reads in part:

The real and personal property of the State or its
political subdivisions shall be exenpt from taxation
[Plroperty used exclusively for non- profit

religious, charit abl e, cenetery, or educat i onal
purposes, ... shall be exenpt for taxation. O her
exenptions of like or different kind nay be granted by

general | aw. Al'l valid existing exenptions shall be
retained until otherw se provided by |aw.

MR. OSTROVSKY told the commttee DOL believes that the phrases

in Article 9, sections 1 and 4, provide the legislature with the
ability to suspend or contract away, to sone degree, taxing

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 16- March 15, 2007



authority. He offered that rules of statutory construction

support this conclusion. One rule of statutory construction
provi des that every word, sentence, or provision in a statute
has sone force or effect. He opined that if there was an

absolute prohibition on the legislature's ability to suspend
taxation authority, one would not expect the clause "except as
provided in this article" to be in the Alaska State
Constitution, Article 9, section 1.

5:05: 00 PM

Additionally, rules of statutory construction provide that
statutes be construed so that effect is given to all provisions
and no parts are left inoperative, superfluous, void, or
i nsignificant. He opined that this requires there be sone
meaning given to the last phrase of Article 9, section 1. He
stated it is reasonable to find that neaning in Article 9,
section 4 which allows exenptions to be granted "by general
[ aw. " He offered that AGA is a general |aw because the
exenption is available to anyone who participates in the first
open season. A related question is whether there are any limts
on this power to suspend or contract the power of taxation. He
said that in the past, legislation has been passed which
authorized tax credits for a 10-year period in what were to be
considered contracts between the state and taxpayers. He noted
that contracts are generally protected by the Constitution of
the United States, although he indicated there is no direct case
law on this point. He opined that AGQA is crafted to be limted
to a narrowy described tax exenption that follows the
| egi sl ati ve nodel .

5:08: 37 PM

MR. OSTROVSKY referred to sone discussion on this |ast year and
stated that nobody knows for certain where the state can cross
the law of fiscal certainty. However, he opined that certain
facts are nore likely to withstand a constitutional challenge --
AG A's provisions are limted to one tax for a 10-year period,
which he indicated is identical to past state statutes that

"were tied to Article 9." In contrast, the Stranded Gas
Devel opnent Act (SGDA) contained sweeping provisions that
covered all state taxes for up to 45 years. He opined that
Ad A s provi si ons are much nor e likely to wthstand

constitutional scrutiny.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked how long a legal challenge wll
t ake.

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -17- March 15, 2007



MR. OSTROVSKY responded that AG A contains a provision that
requires constitutional challenges to it be brought wthin 90
days. He offered his belief that a challenge would present only
a legal issue which he hoped could be resolved expeditiously,
but noted that nobody knows an exact tinme period.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS relayed the possibility that wuncertainty
i s damagi ng to devel opnent and indicated that he |ikes AG A but
he needs "for this AG A project to be tightened up." He offered
that the production tax exenption, even though severable from
the rest of A A creates an el enent of uncertainty.

5:18:10 PM
COWM SSI ONER GALVI N di scussed how nmuch gas is needed to nmake

proj ect worKk. He explained that AGA is open to a wide variety
of projects and offers to the interested parties the opportunity

to relay what the appropriate project size wll be. He opi ned
that the size of the project will becone nore apparent as the
proj ect noves forward. He rem nded the commttee that Prudhoe

Bay is the primary source for proven North Slope gas reserves.
He noted that recently an Alaska Gl and Gas Conservation
Comm ssion (AOGCC) staff report concluded that the AOGCC cannot
at this tine recormmend a specific gas off-take rate. He went on
to say that the report warned that an "early, high-rate gas
sale" could result in a loss of a substantial volunme of
hydr ocar bons. However, the report went on to say that "even
greater volunmes may be at risk if gas sales are indefinitely
del ayed,” he said. He offered that the AOGCC is tasked to
prevent physical waste and is authorized to allow gas off-take
as long as it results in the maxi mum anount of hydrocarbon
recovery. He remnded the conmmttee that AOGCC does not
consider the econom c value of various approaches, but instead
considers "how nmuch physically" will be renoved. He noted that
the issue of how nuch gas can be taken off, and at what rate, is
currently an open question that he hopes will be resolved by
open season.

5:22:07 PM

COM SSIONER  GALVIN remnded the conmttee that the Point
Thonpson | eases termnations are currently being litigated. He
opined that the is likely to prevail in that litigation, but
that it will likely take three years to reach the Al aska Suprene
Court. If the state prevails, the Point Thonpson reserves wll
be available for the gas pipeline project. In addition, there

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 18- March 15, 2007



is some ongoing exploration in other areas of the North Slope
whi ch may uncover sone additional gas reserves.

5:26:20 PM

COW SSIONER  GALVIN summarized that AGQd A provides increased
predictability and incentives for the producers, referring to
slide 17. He opined it would provide jobs and gas for Al askans.
He went on to opine that developnent of the North Slope gas
basin is key to Alaska's long-term future econom c success. He
stressed that the gas pipeline project needs to "get noving," so
as to provide gas revenue before oil revenues drop drastically,
which wll reduce Al aska' s |everage. He opined that AGA is
designed to elimnate uncertainties so as to positively change
t he comercial perception of the project.

[HB 177 was held in commttee.]
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Ol and Gas neeting was adjourned at
5:31:52 PM

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -19- March 15, 2007



